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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
Charitable Company for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a Trustees’ report and a Directors’ report and Strategic report under company law.

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 19 primarity serving a catchment area in and around
High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, stretching from Stokenchurch to Gerrard's Cross. It has a pupil capacity of
1,396 and exceeded capacity in the school census on 7 October 2021. Pupil numbers declared in the school
census were 1,433.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Governors act as Trustees of the Royal Grammar School High Wycombe and are also the Directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as the Royal Grammar
School High Wycombe.

Details 6f the Trustees who served throughout the year except as noted are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law
would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which
they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance in the year was £91.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Trustees of the Academy Trust as at 31 August 2022 either came to the end of, or will serve, their remaining
term of office. The term of their office is 4 years. Trustees may serve for a successive period of 4 years if re-
elected.. It is the board’s practice to ask: Trustees to stand for annual election after they have served for a total
of 8 years.

o Members may appoint up to 10 Community Governors.:

e Members may appoint Academic Staff Governors nominated and elected by the Academic Staff and Support
Staff. Governors are nominated and elected by the Support Staff provided the total number of Academic
Staff Governors (including the Headmaster) does not exceed one third of the total number of Governors.

e Wycombe Royal Grammar School Foundation may appoint up to 6 Foundation Governors approved by the
Members:.

e Parent Governors shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy.

¢ Members may appoint up to 3 Co-opted Governors.

e The Secretary of State-may appoint such Additional Governors as he/she thinks fit.

The Headmaster, Mr Philip Wayne, is an ex-officio Governor.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The induction provided for new Trustees includes an Information Pack containing copies of policies, procedures,
minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees.
They are given a tour of the Academy and the chance to meet with staff, including the Finance Director to discuss
Academy finances, and students. As.there are.normally only two to three new Trustees per year, induction tends
to be done informally and is tailored specifically.to the individual although each new Trustee .is allocated-an
experienced Trustée toact as'mentor during their first 6 months. All Trustees are required to have DBS checks
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

and undertake safeguarding training.

Organisational Structure

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the
Academy’s performance and making major decisions about the strategic direction of the Academy, capital
expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The senior leadership team comprises the Headmaster, Deputy Headmaster, three Assistant Heads, Head of
Boarding and the Finance Director. These managers control the Academy at an executive level, implementing
the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them. As a group the senior leadership team is
responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets, the appointment of staff and for the day to
day operation of the Academy including the organisation of teaching staff, facilities and students.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Senior Leadership Team is set by the Strategy Committee. This Committee comprises
the Chair of Governors and Chairs of the Education, Finance & Audit and Human Resources Committees.

The only Trustees paid by the Academy are Staff Governors. Their remuneration is approved in line with the
policies on Teacher and Support Staff Pay, as approved by Trustees. These policies are reviewed annually.

Trade union facility time

Relevant Union Officials
Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time equivalent employee number
Officials during the relevant period

3 24
Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time Number of employees
0% : 1
1%-50% 2
51%-99% 0
100% 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time £498
Total pay bill £148,618
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.3%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities 100% of paid facility time hours

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Wycombe Royal Grammar School Foundation, a registered charity, holds the majority of the land and buildings
in trust for use by the Academy school. The objectives of this Foundation are to provide benefits for the Royal
Grammar School, including the provision of boarding accommodation and to promote the education of present
and former pupils of the school who are in need.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims
In the last year the Headmaster, Governors and Senior Leadership Team have continued to develop the five-
year strategic plan. This plan sets out the school's Mission and its Vision for the future.

“Our Mission is to nurture the individual potential and character of every student to help them become confident,
socially responsible young people, prepared for happiness and success in their adult lives.”

“Our Vision is to offer our students an exceptional all-round education.”
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Academy is passionate about:

* Instilling a love of learning through intellectual curiosity and independent and creative thinking

* Reinforcing a strong set of life-long personal values based on respect, integrity and aspiration

¢ Encouraging each individual to take personal responsibility, to challenge themselves to explore opportunities
and to fully realise their potential

o Taking pride in personal achievements based on endeavour and commitment

e Encouraging an awareness of the world outside and a sense of service to the local and wider community

The Academy’s main objectives are to deliver:

e Well-rounded individuals who can articulate the difference between right and wrong

e An exceptional, inspirational academic education that allows each student to achieve their full potential

e The widest possible range of extra-curricular activities through which boys establish important life skills and
develop their social, sporting and cultural abilities

e A stimulating and rewarding environment that encourages and celebrates success

¢ The best modern facilities within which to learn and develop

In order to achieve these objectives, the Academy focuses on 7 “strategic pillars”

e Recruiting and retaining high performing staff, providing exceptional leadership at all levels.

* Recruiting and retaining the most able students, from all backgrounds ,

e Enabling all students to achieve their academic potential, through an ambitious curriculum, outstanding
teaching and high-quality support

o Outward looking engagement to connect with all stakeholder groups, past and present

e Adopting a commercial outlook to state education to resource an unparalleled experience for its staff and
students

e The provision -of high-quality accommodation, facilities, technology and resources to support outstanding
teaching and learning

e Promoting the ali-round development of the student

Public Benefit

The Trustees of the Academy Trust have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on Public
Benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties. The activities undertaken to
further the Academy Trust's purpose for the Public Benefit include:

e Provision of an outstanding education supporting the wishes and aims of the local community.
¢ Use of the sc¢hool prémises by the community.

e Support to other schools, including those in Special Measures (as a National Support School).
* Charitable works locally, nationally and internationally

STRATEGIC REPORT

In the previous 2 years the prevalence of the Covid-19 pandemic has exerted a major impact on the effective
running of the Academy The worst of these effects now appear to be behind us and this academic year has seen
a return to “normality”, with in class lessons and national examinations.

There has been a major negative impact on the well-being of many of the students and staff and the effects
continue. to reverberate. Many members of our community have suffered levels of stress and anxiety. Fear and
uncertainty remain, for many. While the allocation of additional “catch-up” funding from central government was
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

greatly appreciated it will be a major challenge to ensure that every boy is able to catch up to where they should
be in order to achieve their potential and to continue to be able to access the pastoral support they require. The
well-being of all staff and students remains our highest priority.

Achievements and Performance

The grades achieved in national exams at both GCSE and A’ Level for 2022 were excellent. Year on year
comparisons should be treated with a degree of caution as the methods of assessment (Teacher or Centre
Assessed grading) have been different for the last 2 years. It is more appropriate to compare results with 2019,
the last year of national exams before the pandemic.

Of all those who applied to Higher Education for entry in 2022 or deferred entry in 2023, 14 boys gained entrance
to Oxford or Cambridge Universities (18 in 2021) and 1 to US University (2 in 2021). 7 boys have gone on to
study medicine/dentistry/veterinary science (27 in 2021). Of the 2022 Year 13, 200/208 boys are moving on to
tertiary education in 2022 or are intending to after a gap year in 2023. This includes Higher and Degree Level
Apprenticeships. Of those who applied through UCAS, 81% achieved their first-choice institution.

The RGS A Level students of 2022 achieved some of the best results in the school’s history. The headline figure
of 85.3% A*-B grades was nearly 12% higher than the last time public exams were held in 2019. More than 60%
of all grades were either A* or A.

The results within boarding were even better, with 88% of grades at A*-B.

Out of a year-group of just over 200, 30 students achieved all A* grades and 85 — over 40% of the year-group —
achieved all A*/A grades.

The results at GCSE are also among the best in the school's history. The headline figure of 76% 9-7 grades was
5% higher than the last time public exams were held in 2019. Grade 9s accounted for 27% of all grades; 54% of
grades were 8s and 9s. Six students achieved all grade 9s and 23 achieved all 8s and 9s.

A high proportion (87%) of Year 11s achieved the government’s ‘strong’ EBacc measure, which consists of grade
5s in English, Maths, History or Geography, at least two Sciences, and a Language).

To ensure that standards are continually raised, the Academy operates a programme of observation of lessons,
staff training and visits by former inspectors. The Academy also undertakes a comparison of results from entry
to Key Stage 3 and GCSE and from GCSE to A level, to assess value added, and participates in national
programmes looking at value added through the key stages.

Key Financial Performance Indicators
The primary “non-financial” indicator is the excellence of students’ attainment in public examinations. This has
been covered above. The Academy monitors 5 key financial indicators:

e Student numbers. This is the primary source of income. The minimum target is 1,350 students. For the
academic year 2021-22 the number on the register was 1,433.

o Total staff costs as a proportion of income from government. This is the primary area of expenditure. The
target is to hold this at less than 90% of income, of which more than 75% should be teaching & boarding
staff costs. For the academic year 2021-22 staff costs, net of boarding, were 82.29% of grant income, of
which 61.25% related to teaching staff costs. The average number of (full time equivalent) employees over
the year was 138, of whom 79 were teaching staff directly involved in teaching and learning.

* Teaching staff turnover. Retention of experienced staff is important in order to ensure continued excellent
teaching. The target is greater than 85% retention rate. At the end of the academic year 11 full time
equivalent teacher positions left the school, which implies 85% retention.

e Total expenditure in line with Budget, in order to achieve a balanced budget. For the academic year 2021-
22 total educational expenditure at £7,668 Million was 2.01% below budget.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL H!IGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

¢ Unrestricted reserves. Positive unrestricted reserves ensure that the Academy is able to meet its liabilities.
The target is to hold reserves of at least £50,000. Over the last 2 years of the pandemic overall reserves
were seriously depleted. It has been a key focus to control expenditure in order to begin to rebuild reserves
and recommence investment in the site. At the end of August 2022 unrestricted reserves were £623,035.

These KPIs are regularly reviewed by the appropriate sub-committee of the Governing Body.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Governors has a reasonable expectation that the Academy
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

As outlined below the main source of funding for the Academy is provided by government grants and financial
uncertainty exists regarding the extent to which increases in funding will be sufficient to meet cost increases from
inflation. In addition, whilst the government has agreed to fund the increase in employers’ contributions to the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme from 16.4% to 23.68% for 2019-20 and 2020-21, financial uncertainty exists as to
whether this will continue for 2021-22 onwards. There is also uncertainty as to what extent increases in employer
contributions to the Local Government Pension Scheme will be required in order to help address funding deficits.
Further, confirmation is awaited on the extent to which government funding will be provided to meet teachers’
pay awards. With regard to both pension funding costs and teachers’ pay the Academy follows national and local
precedents. However, the current high level of national inflation, higher than expected wage increases and
energy cost escalation continue to create significant challenge to the Academy’s financial position.

The Academy has set a budget for the year 2022-23 which generates a surplus. The Trustees are mindful of the
uncertain operating environment over the coming months and continue to work closely with the Academy’s
management to monitor the situation. As at time of writing, the Trustees are confident that this target will be
achieved.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Academy continues to operate against a very challenging financial background.

The main source of funding for the Academy is the General Annual Grant [GAG] which it receives from the
Education and Skills Funding Agency. In 2021-22 grant income increased by 9.09% (£633K) compared to the
previous year. CoVid support grants of £43K were received in 2021-22 to include CoVid Mass Testing, National
Tutoring Support, Educational Recovery and Mental Health. The Trustees set a balanced budget for the
Academy, expecting to end the year with an improved surplus compared to 2020-21.

IMPACT OF COVID-19

The Academy still faces financial risks as a result of the ongoing Covid-19 situation and the uncertainties
surrounding:it. If there had been a recurrence of Covid-19 then boarding income would have suffered due to
the boarding house potentially having to close for the affected period, while at the same time the suspension of
lettings activities would have resulted in lower income.generation. Fortunately, this was not the case for 2021-
22.

It is however anticipated for 2022-23 that the risks are slightly different for the forthcoming year, as it seems
likely that government will continue to adhere to its commitment to keep schools open. Actions taken have been
to identify specific risks and develop mitigation strategies for each possible risk, to reduce other variable costs
as much as possible and to ensure that any spending focusses on the education of the students.

The ongoing unquantifiable impact has been on the well-being of students and staff. Staff have been exceptional
in supporting the continued education of students but there are vulnerable members and many are themselves
parents who would have been responsible for home-schooling their own children at the same time as providing .
on-line education for the Academy. While the majority of students engaged fully in their education, for some it
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

was a challenge to maintain their motivation in the absence of the physical support of their peer group. Providing
emotional and psychological support for affected students is a focus for the new term and we have seen a
continuing high level of demand from our students for this support.

Reserves Policy

At 31 August 2022 the total funds comprised:

Unrestricted £623,035

Restricted:  Fixed asset funds £6,610,976
Pension reserve £ (783,000)
Other £ (20,230)

£6,430,781

The total funds of £6,430,781 (2021 - £447,708) have been favourably impacted by the very significant actuarial
gain on the Pension reserve which considered relevant economic factors up to 31 August 2022. In 2021 this
figure was (£4,795,000). This year it is (£783,000), a positive movement of £4,012,000. Since this date there
has been significant economic turmoil in the UK and Worldwide and it is anticipated as a result of this that there
will be a significant adverse impact on the Pension reserve and consequently the Academy’s total funds when
reporting the 31 August 2023 financial position.

The Academy has set its policy for unrestricted reserves in conjunction with the Wycombe Royal Grammar
School Foundation (see note about Connected Organisations, above) and this policy has been approved by both
the Trustees of the Foundation and the Governors of the Academy. Unrestricted reserves are those that are
freely available to spend on the Charity's purposes, at the discretion of the Governors.

Given this background, the policy of the Governors is to hold unrestricted reserves within the Academy that are
no lower than £50,000. The Academy has managed to achieve this through a programme of stringent cost
management.

The deficit on the pension reserve relates to the support staff pension scheme where, unlike the teachers’
scheme, separate assets are held to fund future liabilities as discussed in note 24. The deficit can be met in the
longer term from any combination of increased employer or employee contributions, increased government
funding or changes to scheme benefits. The restricted funds will be spent in accordance with the terms of the
particular funds

Investment Policy

The Academy holds assets to fund the running of the school. Consequently, capital volatility cannot be tolerated,
so it is the policy to invest only in cash deposits denominated in sterling. Cash balances are deposited with the
Academy’s bankers and in institutions within the Insignis Cash Solutions Third Party Cash Deposit Services.
Deposits are spread by counterparty with maturities set to match planned income and expenditure and, other
than balances held by the Academy’s primary bankers for working capital purposes, no more than £85K of cash
is deposited with any one institution in order to minimise risk. A minimum of £250,000 is kept available for
immediate access.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Academy Trust practices through its Board, namely the Governing Body and the constituted subcommittees,
risk management principles. Accordingly, the Trustees have adopted a risk management strategy which sets out
the processes and responsibilities for risk management in the Academy. These processes, through the
maintenance of a Risk Register, ensure that foreseeable risks are appropriately identified, assessed, controlled
and with mitigating actions monitored. However, the extraordinary events in the wake of the pandemic could not
realistically have been foreseen, controlled or mitigated.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Risk Register, which is maintained by the Senior Leadership Team, is reviewed by the Finance & Audit
Committee every term. Any major risks highlighted through this process are brought to the attention of the Main
Board and they continue to be reported until the risk is adequately mitigated.

The Governing.Body accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of its operations but maintains an objective not
to run unacceptable levels of risk in any area. The subjective nature of this process requires major risks to be
resolved by the Governing Body collectively, whilst more minor risks are dealt with by senior executive officers

The Trustees have identified four broad areas of risk — safety, financial, infrastructure and reputation.

a. Rigorous procedures are in place to ensure the safety and security of students and staff. A Health and
Safety Committee meets termly, with a designated Health and Safety Governor. Any issues identified are
promptly addressed. Students are closely supervised at all times. Tight control is exercised over site
visitors and a rigorous anti-bullying policy is enforced. An effective Child Protection policy is in place and
is reviewed annually in order to safeguard all students.

b. Financial risk is mitigated through the discipline of an annual plan, approved by Governors in the summer
term for the following academic year, starting in September. This sets the expenditure limits for all
departments. It also contains a small contingency fund for the Headmaster to manage minor fluctuations.
The financial aim of the annual plan is to operate within a balanced budget. The Academy has a Scheme
of Financial Delegation that defines the financial expenditure limits, systems and procedures to be
followed by all levels of management. This scheme is reviewed annually by the Finance & Audit
Committee. Further information is included under the system of internal controls on page 14. Financial
progress is reported regularly to the Senior Leadership Team and is reviewed by the Finance & Audit
Committee. The Academy’s Responsible Officer reviews transactions on a regular basis to ensure that
procedures are being followed rigorously.

c. ltis a major challenge to maintain and upgrade the older buildings and infrastructure including IT systems
on the school site. This risk is obviated by managing a planned maintenance and upgrade programme.
In the event that unforeseen significant maintenance is required the Academy is able to approach the
Foundation for funding. Should unforeseen incidents occur the Governors have ensured that adequate
insurance cover is in place. The Academy has produced a strategic development plan to upgrade the
buildings and the facilities over the long term. This will be funded through bidding for various government
and other grants, as well as through fundraising programmes involving parents and alumni.

d. Demand.for.student places at the Academy is very high, based on its reputation for providing an
outstanding and rounded education. This reputation could be undermined should academic standards
fall or be perceived to be deteriorating. Student progress is closely monitored throughout their school
career, 'not only“at the time of exams and-there’is a major focus on academic performance within the -
strategic plan. Students are constantly mentored and coached to achieve their full potential. Having
assessed the report in detail the Trustees are very confident that the most recent Ofsted report (October
2019),has not affected the reputation of the school in a material way as the report was very positive and
the areas for improvement are restricted to the development of curriculum which is already well in hand.
The.academic results continue to develop,in a ;very, strong.trajectory, benchmarkmg well against our,
peers. Reputation could also be |mpacted eltherthrough the loss of experienced senior staff or seriously
inappropriaté behaviour or incident involving senior staff. Either could potentially lead to a drop in
academic standards, reputation and ultimately a reduction in parents selecting the Academy. Career
paths are provided with training and development plans to underpin this. For key posts succession plans
are in place.. The school has a clear code of conduct for all staff that is documented in the Employee:
Handbook, which is updated regularly with changes advertised to staff.

FUNDRAISING

The Academy raises funds-to support specific areas of the school through voluntary parental donations. This
activity is not carried, out by professional fund raisers or commercial participators and does not involve
approaching members of the Jpublic or vulnerable people. Participation is not bound by any voluntary scheme or .
standard"and the-activityis closely‘monitored-by the-school's management. There have been’no complamts -

- ¢« .

Page 9



ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

received by the Academy in respect of this fundraising activity.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The overall future aims and objectives have been outlined above in the section headed Objectives, Strategies
and Activities. The main financial objectives for future periods are predicated on a return to a normal operating
environment in the aftermath of the pandemic. We aim to:

Operate a balanced budget year on year.

Optimise the number of students on roll, particularly in the 6" Form. This will have a significant impact on
income from 2021-22 onwards

Maximise income, through seeking grant funding and developing trading activities in order to continue to
rebuild reserves

Provide funding to upgrade, maintain and refurbish facilities for students

Key strategies are targeted at teaching and learning, improved outcomes for students, improved facilities and
community engagement. They include, for example:

Teaching and Learning:

Recruiting and retaining the best quality staff

Developing clear and consistent working practices

Embedding the school's “Ethos of Learning”

Professional development, including seeking and evaluating best practice examples from schools in
both the state and independent sectors

Development of digital learning

Improved Outcomes:

Reviewing the curriculum in-line with Ofsted’'s recommendations and constructing a new cost-
effective and time-efficient timetable

Enhancing even further the co-curricular provision

A clear focus on Pastoral Care, ensuring safeguarding is at the heart of everything that the school
does.

An emphasis on student and staff well-being

Improving examination results, university success and the employability of our students

Improved Facilities:

Planning and undertaking a continuous refurbishment programme, including IT and related
equipment infrastructure

Bidding for grant funding, including the ESFA Condition Improvement Fund

Fundraising

Provision of improved facilities for the sixth form

The development of Boarding

Maintenance of staff accommodation

Access point refurbishment

Improving disabled facilities

Community Engagement

Developing alumni relations

Building a culture of stakeholder consultation

Improving links with feeder schools

Encouraging parental input from all backgrounds

Helping to ensure parents understand and appreciate what the school offers
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

The school does not hold cash or assets as a custodian for any third party.

AUDITOR

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

e there is:no relevant audit information of whic.h the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

o the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Auditors, MHA Maclintyre Hudson, are willing to continue in office and a resolution to appoint them will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

The Trustees’ Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of governors, as the
company directors, on 06 December 2022 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

J e i

B Casemore .
Chalir of Govemors
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Royal Grammar School High
Wycombe has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Governing Body has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headmaster, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the Funding Agreement between the
Royal Grammar School High Wycombe and the Secretary of State for Education. The Headmaster is also
responsible for reporting to the Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Annual declarations of interest are made by each Trustee for the Trust's register of interest. If any Trustee has
an interest in any matter discussed at Board meetings, they are required to disclose such conflicts and do not
participate in related discussions or decisions.

GOVERNANCE
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’' Report and in the

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The board of Governors has formally met 4 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Governors was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Outofa
attended possible
S Abbas Warraich  (Community Governor) 0 4
R Ali (Parent Governor) 4 4
S Ashton (Community Governor) Resigned 27.09.21 0 0
B Avery (Community Governor) 4 4
L Bignell (Staff Governor) 4 4
B Carr (Community Governor) Appointed 26.11.21 2 3
B Casemore (Chair, Community Governor) 4 4
G Flashman (Parent Governor) 4 4
T Fossey (Staff Governor) Appointed 20.10.21 3 3
M Fuller (Community Governor) Appointed 26.11.21 3 3
R Gilyeat (Staff Governor) Resigned 02.10.21 1 1
M Goodier (Staff Governor) Appointed 20.10.21 3 3
D Hayes (Community Governor) 4 4
C Hodson (Co-opted Governor) Resigned 26.11.21 0 1
A Hussain (Community Governor) ' 2 4
D Markham (Co-opted Governor) Appointed 01.06.22 1 1
T Maunder (Foundation Governor) 3 4
S Mukerji (Co-opted Governor) 2 4
J Nichols (Community Governor) 3 4
G O’Keeffe (Parent Governor, Vice Chair) 3 4
R. Stevens (Parent Governor) Resigned 10.12.21 2 2
S Tan (Staff Governor) Resigned 31.08.22 3 4
C Turney (Parent Governor) Resigned 01.11.21 0 1
N Warnock-Horn (Community Governor) 4 4
P Wayne (Headmaster and Accounting Officer) 4 4
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

During 2021 an in-depth self-evaluation was conducted and the results were considered by the Board of
Governors in June 2021. In the majority of areas under evaluation responses were very positive. However, 5
focus areas for improvement were identified:

- Improved strategic planning supported by more targeted and relevant KPlIs
- Improved engagement with parents, staff, boys and the wider community

- Greater focus in the performance management of staff

- Regular Governor visits (when possible safely again)

- Encouraging more robust challenge by all governors

Action plans were developed in support of each of these areas and progress against these plans is reviewed
regularly by the Governing Body.

In addition to annual safeguarding updates each Trustee is encouraged to undertake 3 training modules p.a.
specific to their individual needs and interests.

The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main governing body. Its purpose is to oversee the
annual budget preparation and in-year monitoring of financial performance. It incorporates the internal audit
function to monitor the risk and control environment of the Academy on behalf of the Main Board.

A Jones, as Finance Director, has attended all meetings. During the year J Newman, a Chartered Certified
Accountant and Responsible Officer attended 2 meetings.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
N Warnock-Horn (Chair) 4 4
B Casemore 4 4
T Fossey 1 2
C Hodson (Resigned 26.11.21) 0 2
D Markham 1 1
S Mukerji 4 4
P Wayne (Headmaster and Accounting Officer) 4 4

The Board have considered and reviewed the quality and relevance of data presented to them during the
year. They have considered its relevance against'the:Academy development plan and long-term objectives as
well as tested its ability to explain and demonstrate the characteristics and measures of school performance. In
addition to academic progress and attainment throughout the key stages, data measures have included
attendance, behaviour and exclusions as well as the differentiation of these measures against targeted groups
and characteristics suchas’ Pupil Premium, ethnicity; and-EAL. The Board are satisfied that the data presented -
has been compiled with due rigour and is duly comprehensive in informing the Trustees of the progress made
against’ the Academy s objective’s and targéts:

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Headmaster has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcome achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value formoney-during”
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Governors where value for money can be improved, including

the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered

improved value for money by continuing to develop procurement processes and through the use of speuallst

support where appropnate .Examples.include; .
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

* The existing cleaning contract was put out to competitive tender in April 2022, to improve both cost and the
quality of cleaning delivery to the School estate. The new contractor appointed at the beginning of September
2022, with a contract commencement date of 21 October 2022
The Language Block Windows were fully replaced in April 2022, with the assistance of a successful CIF Bid
The School was successful in its CIF Bid for the roof deck replacement and associated works to the Sports
Hall. Work commenced in July 2022 and is anticipated to be completed in February 2023

e The School with both the Main Board and Foundation Trustee approval, following a competitive tender
exercise, engaged with Neville Special Projects Ltd to undertake the construction of a new Sixth Form
Centre. Work commenced in July 2022 with practical completion due in December 2022.

e The School with both the Main Board and Foundation Trustee approval, following a mini tender exercise,
engaged with Swimex Ltd to undertake refurbishment of the swimming pool. Work commenced in August
2022 and is anticipated to be completed in March 2023

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk at a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to:

- identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Academy Trust’s policies, aims and objectives

- evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised

- to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in the Royal Grammar School Academy Trust for the period
ended 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academic Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period ending 31 August 2022 and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Governing Body.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy'’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.

In particular, it includes:

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees;

¢ regular reviews by the Finance & Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

e setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

¢ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines. The key document is the
Financial Scheme of Delegated Authority which defines expenditure limits for all levels of management and
the processes or procedures to be followed in seeking authorisation
delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
identification and management of risks through the discipline of a formal Risk Register. Identified risks are
delegated to the most appropriate committee to monitor on a termly basis. The overall register is
consolidated and maintained by the Finance & Audit Committee. Any changes are reported to the Governing
Board each term.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Day to day management responsibility of financial matters rests with the Finance Director, supported by the
Finance Manager.

The'board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and decided not to appoint
an internal auditor. However, the board of Trustees has appointed Mr J Newman, who is a Chartered Certified
Accountant, as Responsible Officer (‘'RO’). The RO’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and
performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. The RO's checks are carried out in 6
monthly cycles. : :

The report covering the period September 2021 to February 2022 was delivered to the Finance & Audit
Committee in June 2022. The scope of the checks included: Payroll; Payroll Reconciliations; Purchasing; Bank
Account control; Petty Cash procedures; Fixed Assets register; Transaction Reports; Budgets & Monitoring;
Register of Interests.

No material issues were identified but improvements to the purchase ordering and payroll systems have been
recommended, in particular to reduce paperwork.

The report covering the period March 2022 to August 2022 was delivered to the Finance & Audit Committee in
October 2022. The scope of the checks included: Payroll; Credit Cards procedures; Income (Trips, Lettings,
Boarding Fees, ESFA income); Transaction Reports; Budgets & Monitoring; Register of Interests.

No material issues were identified.

The Responsible Officer has delivered the planned schedule of work and has reported findings on the operation
of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities at Finance &
Audit Committee meetings. No material control issues have been identified requiring remedial action.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Headmaster has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the Responsible Officer

the work of the external auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

® o o o

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance & Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place. '

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 06 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

e
L
Ve a s
4
PR U SR AP, Tererretrraviies

B Casemore
Chair of Gavernors Accounting Officer
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

As Accounting Officer of the Royal Grammar School Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify
the Academy Trust Governing Body and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust,
under the funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As
part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Governing Body are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Academy Trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Governing
Body and ESFA.

P B Wayne
Accounting officer

06 December 2022
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to 2022,
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
includedon the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Governors

Date: 6 December 2022
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Royal Grammar School High Wycombe (the 'Academy Trust') for
the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
“thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report (incorporating the Strategic Report and the Directors Report)
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

o the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our-opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

o Enquiry of management around actual and potential litigation and claims;

e Performing audit work over the risk of management override of controls, including testing of journal entries
and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions
outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for bias;

e Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

* Reviewing internal audit reports;

+ Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH.WYCOMBE (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust'and'its'members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BIANCA SILVA BA ACA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of

MHA Macintyre Hudson (Statutory Auditor)

Maidenhead; United Kingdom

Date: 20 December 2022
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 August 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Royal Grammar School High Wycombe during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August
2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Royal Grammar School High Wycombe and ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Royal Grammar School High
Wycombe and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Royal Grammar School
High Wycombe and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Royal Grammar School High Wycombe's accounting officer and
the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Royal Grammar School High Wycombe's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 February 2011 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
(CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

e reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and other evidence made available to us,
relevant to our consideration of regularity;

e a review of the objectives and activities of the Academy, with reference to the income streams and other

information available to us as auditors of the Academy;

testing a sample of payroll payments to staff;

testing a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

testing a sample of grants received and other income streams;

consideration of governance issues;

evaluating the internal control procedures and reporting lines, and testing as appropriate; and

making appropriate enquiries.

Conclusion

In the course of our wark,- nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received-during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Mt Mnthd?’r{ tadlooin
Reporting Accountant
MHA Maclintyre Hudson-(Statutory Auditor)
Maidenhead, United Kingdom -

Date: 20 December 2022
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Income from:

Donations and capital grants
Other trading activities
Charitable activities
Boarding

Total income

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities
Boarding

Total expenditure

Net income/ (expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds
before other recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward
Net movement in funds

Total funds carried forward

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 27 to 60 form part of these financial statements.

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

2022 2022 2022 2022 2021

Note £ £ £ £ £

3 54,730 94,605 1,606,060 1,755,395 346,835

5 404,606 - - 404,606 167,523

480,191 7,926,353 - 8,406,544 8,017,940

29 991,934 - - 991,934 874,669

1,931,461 8,020,958 1,606,060 11,558,479 9,406,967

8,443 - - 8,443 18,448

475,318 8,682,712 211,597 9,369,627 8,875,967

885,336 - - 885,336 816,495

7 1,369,097 8,682,712 211,597 10,263,406 9,710,910
562,364 (661,754) 1,394,463 1,295,073 (303,943)

16 (119,784) (51,521) 171,305 - -

442,580 (713,275) 1,565,768 1,295,073 (303,943)
24 - 4,688,000 - 4,688,000 (60,000)
442,580 3,974,725 1,565,768 5,983,073 (363,943)

180,455 (4,777,955) 5,045,208 447,708 811,651
442,580 3,974,725 1,565,768 5,983,073 (363,943)

623,035 (803,230) 6,610,976 6,430,781 447,708
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07492198

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

Note
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 12 -

Current assets

Debtors 13
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 14

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 15

‘Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds 16

Restricted income funds - 16

Pension reserve’ 16

Total restricted funds 16

Unrestricted income funds 16.
Total funds-

2022
£
5,621,724
5,621,724
2,288,529
1,373,592
3,662,121
(1,782,716)
1,879,405
7,501,129
(287,348)
(783,000)
6,430,781
6,610,976
(20,230)
(783,000)
5,807,746
623,035

6,430,781

979,663
883,637

1,863,300

(1,290,605)

5,045,208
17,045

(4,795,000)

2021

4,958,392

4,958,392

572,695

5,631,087

(288,379)

(4,795,000)

447,708

267,253
180,455

447,708 -

The financial statements on pages 24 to 60 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 06

December 2022 'and ‘are signed on their behalf, by:

f &EmeM
B Czsemore, "

Chair of Governars:

The notes on pages 27 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 27 to 60 form part of these financial statements

Note

18
20

19

21,22

2022 2021
£ £
(219,459) 689,074

725,381 (178,523)
(15,967) 49,636
489,955 560,187
883,637 323,450
883,637

1,373,592
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies

11

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopied (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Royal Grammar School High Wycombe meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Royal Grammar School High Wycombe is a company limited by guarantee incorporated in England
and Wales. The address of the registered office, principal place of operations and registered number
are detailed on page 1. The nature of the Academy Trust's operations and principal activity are
detailed in the Trustees' Report.

The Financial Statements are prepared in British Pound Sterling (£), the functional and presentational
currency, rounded to the nearest £1.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular
purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

e Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

o Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

¢ Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Income tax recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is
recognised at the time of the donation.

e Otherincome

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

o Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Academy Trust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate
fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy
Trust's accounting policies.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources.

Expenditure on raising funds

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds
for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activity events and non-charitable
trading.

Charitable activities

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational
operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust
apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period. of at least.one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a-going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term..

‘Taxation -

The Academy Trust.is considered to.pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Page 29



ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income
and Expenditure Account.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than leasehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives
on the following bases:

Leasehold property - 2% - 7% per annum on cost
improvements

Fixtures and fittings - 10% - 33% per annum on cost

Computer equipment - 33% per annum on cost

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount. Prepayments are recognised at
the amount prepaid. '

1.10 Cash at ban_k and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.11 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a resuit
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 14 and 15. Taxation and social security are not
included’in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are
the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.14 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent for the Staff Common Room Fund. Income from staff and
expenditure on the staff common room are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the
Academy Trust does not have control over the funds. The funds received and paid and any balances
held are disclosed in note 28.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A .Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust. makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

The judgements that have had a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements are
those concerning the choice of depreciation policies and asset lives.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

3. Income from donations and capital grants
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
Donations ' 54,730 94,605 796,358 945,693
Capital grants - - 809,702 809,702
54,730 94,605 1,606,060 1,755,395
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Donations 72,253 62,612 50,905 185,770
Capital grants - _ - 161,065 161,065

72,253 - 62,612 211,970 346,835
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4. Funding for the Academy's educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium
Teachers pay
Teachers pension
Others

Other Government grants
Other local authority income

Other income from the Academy Trust's educational
operations

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding

COVID-19 additional funding (non-DfE/ESFA)
Other COVID-19 funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total

funds funds funds

2022 2022 2022

£ £ £

- 7,586,096 7,586,096

- 45,923 45,923

- 29,123 29,123

- 82,293 82,293

- 73,355 73,355

- 7,816,790 7,816,790

- 66,584 66,584

- 66,584 66,584
480,191 - 480,191
] 24,895 24,895

- 24,895 24,895

- 18,084 18,084

- 18,084 18,084

480,191 7,926,353

8,406,544
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4. Funding for the Academy's educational operations (continued)
Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021
£ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 6,953,485 6,953,485

Other DfE/ESFA grants '
Pupil premium - 43,408 43,408
Teachers pay - 97,620 97,620
Teachers pension - 275,849 275,849
Others - 47,290 47,290

- 7,417,652 7,417,652
Other Government grants

Other local authority income : - 45,893 45,893
- 45,893 45,893
Other income from the Academy Trust's educational . :
operations 376,533 - 376,533
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up Premium ' - 81,600 81,600
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 47,270 47,270
- 128,870 128,870
COVID-19 additional funding (non-DfE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant i - 7,752 7,752
Other COVID-19 funding - 41,240 41,240
- 48,992 48,992

376,533 7,641,407 8,017,940
The academy received £81,600 of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this
funding totalled £76,864, with the remaining £4,736 to be spent in 2021/22.

The academy furloughed its lettings and rowing staff under the government's CJRS. The funding received
of £7,752 relates to staff costs in respect of 6 staff which are included in note 11 below as appropriate.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

5. Income from other trading activities

Lettings
School shop income
Other income

Lettings
School shop income
Other income

6. Expenditure

Expenqiture on fundraising trading activities:
Direct Costs

Academy educational operations:

Direct costs~

Support costs-
Boarding costs

Unrestricted Total

funds funds

2022 2022

£ £

111,671 111,671

20,279 20,279

272,656 272,656

404,606 404,606

Unrestricted Total

funds funds

2021 2021

£ £

103,768 103,768

40,776 40,776

22,979 22,979

167,523 167,523

Staff Costs Other Total .
2022 2022 2022
£ £ £

- 8,443 8,443

4,903,395 1,159,146 6,062,541

2,337,165 969,921 3,307,086

364,032 521,304 885,336
7,604,592 2,658,814

10,263,406

Costs associated with the provision of boarding facilities include directly attributable costs, allocated staff

costs and an allocation of general overheads.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

6. Expenditure (continued)

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs
Academy educational operations:

Direct costs
Support costs
Boarding costs

7. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Academy's educational operations

Academy's educational operations

5,938,536

2,937,431

Staff Costs Other Total

2021 2021 2021

£ £ £

- 18,448 18,448

5,002,750 935,786 5,938,536

1,933,204 1,004,227 2,937,431

371,254 445,241 816,495

7,307,208 2,403,702 9,710,910
Activities

undertaken Support Total

directly costs funds

2022 2022 2022

£ £ £

6,062,541 3,307,086 9,369,627
Activities

undertaken Support Total

directly costs . funds

2021 2021 2021

£ £ £

8,875,967
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

7. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff wages and salaries
Depreciation

Technology costs

Educational supplies

Examination fees

Educational consultancy

Staff costs and expenses

Other direct costs

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance cost

Support staff wages and salaries
Technology costs

Premises costs

Legal costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total Total
funds funds
2022 2021
£ £
4,903,395 5,002,750
217,347 219,468
15,453 141,225
340,331 111,436
156,136 148,483
45,648 7,529
51,969 44,764
332,262 262,881
6,062,541 5,938,536
Total Total
funds funds
2022 2021
£ £
76,000 66,000
2,326,875 1,924,053
95,773 104,232
551,872 606,969
5,407 -
218,558 202,198
32,601 33,979
3,307,086 2,937,431
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

8. Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2022 2021
£ £
Operating lease rentals 304,413 270,185
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 217,347 219,468
Fees paid to auditors for:
- audit 10,500 10,000
- other services 10,880 11,920
9. Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:
2022 2021
£ £
Wages and salaries ’ 5,294,492 5,227,810
Social security costs 538,559 526,512
Pension costs : 1,771,541 1,520,785
7,604,592 7,275,107
Staff governance costs - 9,151
Staff restructuring costs - 22,950

7,604,592 7,307,208

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

2022 2021
£ £
Severance payments - 22,950

- 22,950

b. Special staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £nil
(2021 - £12,750 to one individual).
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

9. Staff (continued)
c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2022 2021

No. No.

Teachers 92 91
Administration and support 93 77
Management 2 2

187 170

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2022 2021
‘ ‘ No. No..
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 4 4
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 1 1
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 1
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 1 1

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £926,642 (2021 - £866,876).
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

10.

1.

Related Party Transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2022 2021
£ £
P Wayne, Head Teacher Remuneration 110,000 - 115,000 110,000 - 115,000
Pension contributions 25,000 - 30,000 25,000 - 30,000
R Gilyeat, Staff Governor Remuneration 0-5,000 40,000-45,000
(resigned 02/10/2021) '
Pension contributions 0-5,000 10,000 - 15,000

S Tan, Staff Governor Remuneration
(resigned 31/08/2022)
Pension contributions
M Goodier, Staff Governor Remuneration
(appointed 20/10/2021)
Pension contributions
Remuneration

Pension contributions

L Bignell, Staff Governor

50,000 - 55,000

10,000 - 15,000
35,000 - 40,000

5,000 - 10,000
20,000 - 25,000
0-5,000

45,000 - 50,000

10,000 - 15,000
40,000 - 45,000

10,000 - 15,000
15,000 - 20,000
0 - 5,000

T Fossey Remuneration 45,000 - 50,000
(appointed 20/10/2021)

Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 15,000
During the year ended 31 August 2022, no Trustee expenses were reimbursed (2021 - £150 to 1

Trustee).

Remuneration disclosures for staff Trustees are shown to resignation date and from appointment date in
the year.

Remuneration disclosures for staff Trustees who resigned before 1 September 2021 have not been
disclosed in these financial statements.

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the
year ended 31 August 2022 was £91 (2021 - £99).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

12. Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2021
Additions

Disposals

At 31 August 2022

Depreciation

At 1 September 2021
Charge for the year
On disposals

At 31 August 2022

Net book value

At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

13. Debtors

Due withinone year-

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
VAT recoverable

Long-term
leasehold
property Fixtures and Computer
improvements fittings equipment Total
£ £ £ £
5,474,114 582,375 568,797 6,625,286
744,122 96,878 39,679 880,679
- (12,950) - (12,950)
6,218,236 666,303 608,476 7,493,015
736,786 462,620 467,488 1,666,894
120,429 34,119 62,799 217,347
- (12,950) - (12,950)
857,215 483,789 530,287 1,871,291
5,361,021 182,514 78,189 5,621,724
4,737,328 119,755 101,309 4,958,392
2022 2021
£ £
256,127 263,456 -
6,806 3,971
1,967,837 666,252
57,759 45,984
2,288,529 979,663
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

14. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021

£ £

Salix and CIF loans 20,231 20,230
Trade creditors 463,294 351,512
Other taxation and social security 255,400 260,511
Boarding fees in advance 14,954 14,660
Other creditors 136,867 116,446
Accruals and deferred income ' 891,970 527,246

1,782,716 1,290,605

2022 2021

£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2021 478,986 581,743
Resources deferred during the year 573,742 478,986
Amounts released from previous periods (478,986) (581,743)

Deferred income at 31 August 2022 573,742 478,986

Deferred income relates to boarding fees and trip monies received in advance for the next academic year.

Included within creditors due within one year is a SALIX loan for £12,685 due to ESFA, and repayable
over 8 years from March 2019, a second SALIX loan for £6,566 due to ESFA and repayable over 8 years
from September 2021 and a Condition Improvement Fund loan for £980 due to ESFA and repayable over
10 years from September 2021 with an interest rate of 2.07% . No interest is charged on the SALIX loans.
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15. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Salix and CIF loans
Boarding fees in advance
Boarding deposits

2022 2021

£ £
95,891 111,859
30,810 45,764
160,647 130,756
287,348 288,379

The aggregate amount of liabilities payable or repayable wholly or in part more than five years after the

reporting date is:

Payable or repayable by instalments

2022 2021

£ £
21,313 30,938
21,313 30,938

Included within creditors due after more than one year is a SALIX loan for £44,398 (2021 - £57,083) due
to ESFA, and repayable over 8 years from March 2019, a second SALIX loan for £42,673 (2021 -
£45,955) due to-ESFA and repayable over 8 years from September 2021 and a Condition Improvement
Fund loan for £8,821 due to ESFA and repayable over 10 years from September 2021 with an interest rate

of 2.07%. No interest is charged on the SALIX loans.
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16. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Designated funds
Boarding 61,174 991,934 (885,336) - - 167,772
General funds
General unrestricted
funds 119,281 939,527 (483,761) (119,784) - 455,263
Total Unrestricted
funds 180,455 1,931,461  (1,369,097)  (119,784) . 623,035
Restricted general
funds
General Annual: :
Grant (GAG) - 7,586,096 (7,534,575) (51,521) - -
Other local authority
grants - 66,584 (66,584) - - -
Pupil premium - 45,923 (45,923) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
revenue 32,539 184,771 (217,310) - - -
Other restricted
funds - 94,605 (94,605) - - -
Salix loans (19,250} - - - - (19,250)
CIF loan (980) - - - - (980)
Catch-up premium 4,736 - (4,736) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
COvID-19 - 24,895 (24,895) - - -
Other COVID-19
funding - 18,084 (18,084) - - -
Pension reserve (4,795,000) - (676,000) - 4,688,000 (783,000)
(4,777,955) 8,020,958  (8,682,712) (51,521) 4,688,000 (803,230)
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16. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure inout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Fixed asset funds 4,958,392 - (211,597) 874,929 - 5,621,724
Developed formula
capital - 32,572 - (32,572) - -
Capital improvement
fund 173,677 777,130 - (279,462) - 671,345
Donations 25,000 796,358 - (407,558) - 413,800
Salix loans (103,038) - - 15,968 - (87,070)
CIF loan (8,823) - - - - (8,823)
5,045,208 1,606,060 (211,597) 171,305 - 6,610,976
Total Restricted
funds 267,253 9,627,018  (8,894,309) 119,784 4,688,000 5,807,746
Total funds 447,708 11,558,479 (10,263,406) - 4,688,000 6,430,781
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The Academy Trustees have designated an unrestricted fund which represents the surplus on boarding
over related fixed asset additions from boarding.

All unrestricted funds are held for the purpose of education in line with the Academy’s objectives.

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the
Academy that has been provided to the Academy via the Education and Skills Fundmg Agency and the
Department for Education.

The transfer between the Restricted General Annual Grant fund and unrestricted funds is to eliminate the
deficit on GAG expenditure, and the transfer from unrestricted funds to fixed assets represents amounts
spent on assets out of non grant income.

The pension reserve fund has been created to separately identify the pension deficit inherited from the
local authority upon conversion to academy status, and through which all the pension scheme movements
are recognised.

The Restricted Fixed Asset fund represents the net book value of capitalised fixed assets, unspent capital
grants and the balance of a Salix loan due in more than one year used to purchase capital items.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.
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16. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
Designated funds
Boarding 3,000 874,669 (816,495) - - 61,174
General funds
General
unrestricted funds 18,177 616,309 (365,770) (149,435) - 119,281
Total Unrestricted
funds 21,177 1,490,978 (1,182,265)  (149,435) - 180,455
Restricted general
funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) - 6,953,485 (7,102,546) 149,061 - -
Other local authority
grants. - 45,893 (45,893) - - -
Pupil premium, 21,822 43,408 (65,230) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
revenue 39,550 420,759 (427,770) - - 32,539
Other restricted
funds - 62,612 (62,612) - - -
Salix loans (12,685) - - (6,565) - (19,250)
ClF:loan- - - - (980) - (980)
Catch-up-premium- - 81,600+ (76,864) - - 4,736
Other DfE/ESFA -
COVID19 ~ - 47,270~ (47,270) - - -
Coronavirus-Job-
Retention Scheme - 7,752 (7,752) - - -
Other COVID-19
funding - 41,240 (41,240) - - -
Pension reserve (4,303,000) - (432,000) - (60,000) (4,795,000)
(4,254,313) 7,704,019  (8,309,177) 141,516 (60,000) (4,777,955)
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16. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1 September ) " Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Fixed asset funds 4,787,367 - (219,468) 390,493 - 4,958,392
Developed formula
capital - 31,970 - (31,970) - -
Capital improvement
fund 327,188 129,095 - (282,606) - 173,677
Donations - 50,905 - (25,905) - 25,000
Salix loans (69,768) - - (33,270) - (103,038)
CIF loan - - - (8,823) - (8,823)
5,044,787 211,970 (219,468) 7,919 - 5,045,208
Total Restricted
funds 790,474 7,915,989  (8,528,645) 149,435 (60,000) 267,253
Total funds 811,651 9,406,967  (9,710,910) - (60,000) 447,708
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17.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Current year

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets ‘

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year
Pension scheme liability

Total

Prior year

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year
Pension scheme liability

Total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 - 2022
£ £ £ £
- - 5,621,724 5,621,724
623,035 1,953,941 1,085,145 3,662,121
- (1,782,716) - (1,782,716)
- (191,455) (95,893) (287,348)
- (783,000) - (783,000)
623,035 (803,230) 6,610,976 6,430,781
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
- 4,958,392 4,958,392
180,455 1,484,168 198,677 1,863,300
- (1,290,605) - (1,290,605)
- (176,518) (111,861) (288,379)
- (4,795,000) - (4,795,000)
447,708

180,455

(4,777,955)

5,045,208
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18.

19.

20.

Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of Financial

Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase in creditors

Pension adjustments

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from Salix and CIF loans
Repayments of Salix loan

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group
Capital funding received from sponsors and others

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

2022 2021
£ £
1,295,073  (303,943)
217,347 219,268
(1,606,060)  (211,970)
(1,308,866) 244,556
507,047 309,163
676,000 432,000
(219,459) 689,074
2022 2021
£ £
.- 62,321
(15,967) (12,685)
(15,967) 49,636
2022 2021
£ £
(880,679)  (390,493)
809,702 161,065
796,358 50,905
725,381

(178,523)
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21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

£ £

Cash in hand and at bank 1,373,592 883,637

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,373,592 883,637

22, Analysis of changes in net debt

At1

September At 31

2021 Cash flows August 2022

£ £ £

Cash at bank and in hand ' 883,637 489,955 1,373,592

Debt due within 1 year (20,230) (1) (20,231)

Debt due after 1 year (111,859) 15,968 (95,891)

Boarding fees in advance (60,424) 14,660 (45,764)

691,124 520,582 1,211,706

23. Capital commitments

2022 2021
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 2,131,322 -
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24,

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Buckmghamshlre County Council. Both are
multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £125,285 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021 - £132,412)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies.
All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

) the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
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24,

Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £843,346 (2021 - £858,747).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £420,000 (2021 -
£383,000) of which employer's contributions totalled £330,000 (2021 - £299,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £92,000 (2021 - £84,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23.0 per
cent for employers and between 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note 1.13 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were
the employees transferred-as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. -

Principal actuarial assumptions

2022 2021

% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.95 3.90
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.95 2.90
Discount rate for scheme liabilities- 4.25 1.65
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2,95 2.90
Inflation (RPI) 3.95 3.20

The current mortality assumptions inclideé sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates:
The assumeéd lifé expectations on retiremént age 65 are:
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24. Pension commitments (continued)

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis - present value of total obligation

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1% -

CPl rate -0.1%

Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Gilts

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Alternative assets and other

Total market value of assets

2022 2021
Years Years
21.0 216
24.6 25.0
22.3 22.9
26.0 26.4
2022 2021
£000 £000
(133) (227)
136 233
(181) (433)
186 452
131 217
(128) (212)
At 31 At 31 August
August 2022 2021
£ £
3,022,000 3,028,000
434,000 522,000
692,000 781,000
350,000 324,000
133,000 75,000
797,000 844,000

5,428,000

The actual return on scheme assets was -£349,000 (2021 - £847,000).

5,574,000
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24,

Pension commitments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2022 2021
£ £
Current service cost (926,000) (661,000)
Interest cost ‘ (76,000) (66,000)
Administrative expenses (4,000) (4,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (1,006,000) (731,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2022 2021
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 10,369,000 8,800,000
Current service cost 926,000 661,000
Interest cost 170,000 140,000
Employee contributions 92,000 84,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses (5,131,000) 833,000
Benefits paid ‘ ' (215,000)  (149,000)
Closing defined benefit obligation 6,211,000 10,369,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2022 2021
£ £
Opening fair value of. scheme assets 5,574,000 4,497,000
Intérest incomie - 94,000 74,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains (443,000) 773,000
Employee contributions 92,000 84,000
Benefits.paid~ (215,000)  (149,000)
Admin.expenses.. (4,000) (4,000)
Employer contributions 330,000 299,000-
5,574,000

Closing fair value of scheme assets 5,428,000
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The amount shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is:

2022 2021
£ £
Changes in financial assumptions 5,131,000 (833,000)
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest {443,000) 773,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 4,688,000 (60,000)
24. Pension commitments (continued)
2022 2021
£ £
The amount shown in the Balance Sheet is:
Present value of defined benefit obligation (6,211,000) (10,369,000)
Fair value of scheme assets 5,428,000 5,574,000

Defined benefit pension scheme liability (783,000) (4,795,000)

25. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2022 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Not later than 1 year ' 293,500 269,107
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,075,124 998,311
Later than 5 years 684,583 860,000

2,053,207 2,127,418

26. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.
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27.

28.

Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the trust's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

Wycombe Royal Grammar School Foundation, a registered charity, holds the majority of the land and
buildings in trust for use by the Academy Trust. During the year, the Foundation charged £275,412 (2021:
£240,000) for rent of the boarding accommodation and provided donations of £985,106 (2021: £167,776)
to promote the education of present and former pupils. The Academy Trust was owed £681,171 at the
year end by Wycombe Royal Grammar School Foundation (2021: Academy Trust owed £NIL at the year
end to Wycombe Royal Grammar School Foundation).

No other related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain Trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10.

' Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes Staff Common Room income and expenditure. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2021, the Academy Trust received £3,212 (2021 - £2,813) and disbursed £4,262 (2021
- £1,856) from the fund. An amount of £413 (2021 - £1,463) is included in other creditors.
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29. Academy boarding trading account

2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Income
Direct income
Fee income 991,934 ‘ 868,883
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant - 5,786
Total income 991,934 874,669
Other expenditure
Boarding staff costs 364,032 371,254
Buildings maintenance 7,987 2,830
Rent and rates 280,626 244,999
Utilities 17,298 13,589
Catering costs 186,047 166,690
Other costs 29,346 17,133
Total other expenditure 885,336 816,495
Total expenditure 885,336 816,495
Surplus from all sources 106,598 58,174
Boarding balances at 1 September 2021 61,174 3,000
Boarding balances at 31 August 2022 167,772 61,174

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support
schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above.

The academy furloughed its boarding staff under the government's CJRS. The funding received of £nil
(2021 : £5,786) relates to staff costs in respect of 7 staff.
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